Commercial Vehicle Group, Inc. Form DEF 14A April 09, 2008

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION Washington, D.C. 20549

SCHEDULE 14A

Proxy Statement Pursuant to Section 14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (Amendment No.)

Filed by the Registrant þ
Filed by a Party other than the Registrant o

Check the appropriate box:

- o Preliminary Proxy Statement
- o Confidential, for Use of the Commission Only (as permitted by Rule 14a-6(e)(2))
- b Definitive Proxy Statement
- o Definitive Additional Materials
- o Soliciting Material Pursuant to §240.14a-12

COMMERCIAL VEHICLE GROUP, INC.

(Name of Registrant as Specified In Its Charter)

(Name of Person(s) Filing Proxy Statement, if other than the Registrant) Payment of Filing Fee (Check the appropriate box):

- b No fee required.
- o Fee computed on table below per Exchange Act Rules 14a-6(i)(1) and 0-11.
 - 1) Title of each class of securities to which transaction applies:
 - 2) Aggregate number of securities to which transaction applies:
- 3) Per unit price or other underlying value of transaction computed pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 0-11 (set forth the amount on which the filing fee is calculated and state how it was determined):
 - 4) Proposed maximum aggregate value of transaction:
 - 5) Total fee paid:
 - o Fee paid previously with preliminary materials.

o Check box if any part of the fee is offset as provided by Exchange Act Rule 0-11(a)(2) and identify the filing for which the offsetting fee was paid previously. Identify the previous filing by registration statement

number, or the Fo	orm or Schedule and the date of its filing.
1) Amount Pr	eviously Paid:
2) Form Sahe	edule or Registration Statement No.:
2) Politi, Sch	edule of Registration Statement No
3) Filing Party	y:
4) Date Filed:	
SEC 1913 (02-02)	Persons who are to respond to the collection of information contained in this form are not required to respond unless the form displays a currently valid OMB control number.

COMMERCIAL VEHICLE GROUP, INC.

7800 Walton Parkway New Albany, Ohio 43054 Telephone: (614) 289-5360

April 10, 2008

Dear Stockholder:

You are cordially invited to attend our 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which will be held on Tuesday, May 20, 2008, at 1:00 p.m. (Eastern Time) at the Company s headquarters located at 7800 Walton Parkway, New Albany, OH 43054. With this letter, we have enclosed a copy of our 2007 Annual Report on Form 10-K, notice of annual meeting of stockholders, proxy statement and proxy card. These materials provide further information concerning the annual meeting. If you would like another copy of the 2007 Annual Report, please contact Chad M. Utrup, Chief Financial Officer, and one will be mailed to you.

At this year s annual meeting, the agenda includes the election of certain directors and a proposal to ratify the appointment of our independent registered public accounting firm. The Board of Directors recommends that you vote FOR election of the slate of nominees for directors and FOR ratification of appointment of the independent registered public accounting firm. We will also report on current business conditions and our recent developments. Members of the Board of Directors and our executive officers will be present to discuss the affairs of the Company and to answer any questions you may have.

It is important that your shares be represented and voted at the annual meeting, regardless of the size of your holdings. Accordingly, please complete, sign and date the enclosed proxy card and return it promptly in the enclosed envelope to ensure your shares will be represented. If you do attend the annual meeting, you may, of course, withdraw your proxy should you wish to vote in person.

We look forward to seeing you at the annual meeting.

Sincerely,

Mervin Dunn
President and Chief Executive Officer

COMMERCIAL VEHICLE GROUP, INC.

7800 Walton Parkway New Albany, Ohio 43054 Telephone: (614) 289-5360

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS May 20, 2008 1:00 p.m. Eastern Time

The 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders of Commercial Vehicle Group, Inc. will be held on Tuesday, May 20, 2008, at 1:00 p.m. (Eastern Time), at the Company s headquarters located at 7800 Walton Parkway, New Albany, OH 43054.

The annual meeting is being held for the following purposes:

- 1. To elect two Class I Directors to serve until the annual meeting of stockholders in 2011 and until their successors are duly elected and qualified or until their earlier removal or resignation (the Board of Directors recommends a vote FOR the nominees named in the attached proxy statement proposal);
- 2. To ratify the appointment of Deloitte & Touche LLP as the independent registered public accounting firm of Commercial Vehicle Group, Inc. for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2008 (the Board of Directors recommends a vote FOR this proposal); and
- 3. To transact such other business as may properly come before the annual meeting or any adjournment or postponement thereof.

These items are fully discussed in the following pages, which are made part of this notice. Only stockholders of record at the close of business on March 24, 2008, will be entitled to vote at the annual meeting.

Enclosed with this Notice of Annual Meeting of Stockholders is a proxy statement, related proxy card with a return envelope and our 2007 Annual Report on Form 10-K. The 2007 Annual Report on Form 10-K contains financial and other information that is not incorporated into the proxy statement and is not deemed to be a part of the proxy soliciting material.

By Order of the Board of Directors

Chad M. Utrup Chief Financial Officer

April 10, 2008

Even if you expect to attend the Annual Meeting, please promptly complete, sign, date and mail the enclosed proxy card. A self-addressed envelope is enclosed for your convenience. No postage is required if mailed in the United States. Stockholders who attend the Annual Meeting may revoke their proxies and vote in person if they so desire.

COMMERCIAL VEHICLE GROUP, INC.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page
QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT VOTING	i
PROXY STATEMENT	1
Voting and Revocability of Proxies	1
Record Date and Share Ownership	1
PROPOSAL NO. 1 ELECTION OF DIRECTORS	2
Class I Directors Director Nominees	2
Directors Continuing in Office	3
Class II Directors	3
Class III Directors	3
Corporate Governance	3
Recommendation of the Board	6
PROPOSAL NO. 2 RATIFICATION OF APPOINTMENT OF THE INDEPENDENT REGISTERED	
PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM	6
Principal Accountant Fees and Services	6
Policy on Audit Committee Pre-Approval and Permissible Non-Audit Services of the Independent Registered	
Public Accounting Firm	7
Recommendation of the Board	7
SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT	8
EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION	11
Compensation Discussion and Analysis	11
Compensation Committee Report	20
2007 Summary Compensation Table	20
2007 Grants of Plan-Based Awards Table	22
2007 Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End Table	23
2007 Option Exercises and Stock Vested Table	25
2007 Pension Benefits Table	25
2007 Deferred Compensation Table	26
Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change-in-Control Table	27
2007 Director Compensation Table	30
Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation	31
CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS	31
SECTION 16(a) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE	32
AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT	32
SUBMISSION OF STOCKHOLDERS PROPOSALS AND ADDITIONAL INFORMATION	34
OTHER MATTERS	35

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT VOTING

Q: Why did you send me this proxy statement?

A: This proxy statement is being sent to you because our Board of Directors is soliciting your proxy to vote at the 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders. This proxy statement includes information required to be disclosed to you in connection with our solicitation of proxies in connection with the annual meeting. Stockholders of record as of the close of business on March 24, 2008 are entitled to vote. This proxy statement and the related proxy card are first being sent on or about April 10, 2008 to those persons who are entitled to vote at the annual meeting.

Q: How many votes do I have?

A: Each share of our common stock that you own entitles you to one vote.

O: How do I vote?

- **A:** You can vote on matters presented at the annual meeting in three ways:
 - 1. You can vote by filling out, signing and dating your proxy card and returning it in the enclosed envelope, OR
 - 2. You can vote over the internet or by telephone, OR
 - 3. You can attend the annual meeting and vote in person.

Q: How do I vote by proxy?

A: If you properly fill out your proxy card and send it to us in time to vote, your shares will be voted as you have directed. If you do not specify a choice on your proxy card, the shares represented by your proxy card will be voted for the election of all nominees and for the ratification of the appointment of Deloitte &Touche LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm for the 2008 fiscal year. Whether or not you plan to attend the annual meeting, we urge you to complete, sign, date and return your proxy card in the enclosed envelope. Returning the proxy card will not affect your right to attend the annual meeting and vote in person.

Q: How do I vote in person?

- **A:** If you attend the annual meeting, we will give you a ballot when you arrive.
- Q: If my shares are held in street name by my broker, will my broker vote my shares for me?
- **A:** Your broker will vote your shares only if you provide instructions on how to vote. You should follow the directions provided by your broker regarding how to instruct your broker to vote your shares.
- Q: Can I change my vote or revoke my proxy after I have mailed my proxy card?
- **A:** You can change your vote at any time before your proxy is voted at the annual meeting. You can do this in one of three ways. First, you can send a written notice to the Chief Financial Officer at our headquarters stating that you would like to revoke your proxy. Second, you can complete and submit a new proxy card. Third, you can attend

the annual meeting and vote in person. Simply attending a meeting, however, will not revoke your proxy. If you have instructed a broker to vote your shares, you must follow the directions you received from your broker to change your vote.

- Q: Will there be any matters voted upon at the annual meeting other than those specified in the Notice of Annual Meeting?
- **A:** Our Board of Directors does not know of any matters other than those discussed in this proxy statement that will be presented at the annual meeting. If other matters are properly brought before the meeting and we do not have notice of these matters within a reasonable time prior to the annual meeting, all proxies will be voted in accordance with the recommendations of our Board of Directors.

i

O: How are votes counted?

A: Stockholders of record of our common stock as of the close of business on March 24, 2008 are entitled to vote at the annual meeting. As of March 24, 2008, there were 22,053,872 shares of common stock outstanding. The presence in person or by proxy of a majority of the outstanding shares of common stock will constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. Each share of common stock is entitled to one vote on each matter to come before the annual meeting.

Under Delaware law, if you have returned a valid proxy or attend the meeting in person, but abstain from voting, your stock will nevertheless be treated as present and entitled to vote. Your stock, therefore, will be counted in determining the existence of a quorum and, even though you have abstained from voting, will have the effect of a vote against any matter requiring the affirmative vote of a majority of the shares present and entitled to vote at the annual meeting, such as the ratification of the appointment of Deloitte & Touche LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm for the 2008 fiscal year.

Under Delaware law, broker non-votes are also counted for purposes of determining whether a quorum is present, but are not counted in determining whether a matter requiring a majority of the shares present and entitled to vote has been approved or whether a plurality of the vote of the shares present and entitled to vote has been cast.

Q: How are proxies being solicited and who pays for the solicitation of proxies?

A: Initially, we will solicit proxies by mail. Our directors, officers and employees may also solicit proxies in person or by telephone without additional compensation. We will pay all expenses of solicitation of proxies.

Q: Can I access this proxy statement and CVG s 2007 Annual Report on Form 10-K electronically?

A: The proxy statement and our Annual Report on Form 10-K are available on our website at www.cvgrp.com/Investor Relations.

ii

PROXY STATEMENT

This Proxy Statement is furnished in connection with the solicitation by the Board of Directors (the Board) of Commercial Vehicle Group, Inc., a Delaware corporation (CVG), of proxies for use in voting at the Annual Meeting of Stockholders scheduled to be held on May 20, 2008 and at any postponement or adjournment thereof. This Proxy Statement and the related proxy card are being mailed to holders of our common stock, commencing on or about April 10, 2008. References in this Proxy Statement to Company, we, our, or us refer to CVG, unless otherwise note

Voting and Revocability of Proxies

When proxies are properly dated, executed and returned, the shares they represent will be voted as directed by the stockholder on all matters properly coming before the annual meeting.

Where specific choices are not indicated on a valid proxy, the shares represented by such proxies received will be voted:

- 1. FOR the nominees for directors named in this Proxy Statement; and
- 2. FOR the ratification of the appointment of Deloitte & Touche LLP as independent registered public accounting firm for 2008 in accordance with the best judgment of the persons named in the enclosed proxy, or their substitutes.

In addition, if other matters come before the annual meeting, the persons named in the accompanying form of proxy will vote in accordance with their best judgment with respect to such matters.

Returning your completed proxy will not prevent you from voting in person at the annual meeting should you be present and desire to do so. In addition, the proxy may be revoked at any time prior to its exercise either by giving written notice to our Chief Financial Officer prior to the annual meeting or by submission of a later-dated proxy.

At the annual meeting, inspectors of election shall determine the presence of a quorum and shall tabulate the results of the stockholders voting. The presence of a quorum is required to transact the business proposed to be transacted at the annual meeting. The presence in person or by proxy of holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of common stock entitled to vote will constitute the necessary quorum for any business to be transacted at the annual meeting. In accordance with the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware (the DGCL), properly executed proxies marked abstain as well as proxies held in street name by brokers that are not voted on all proposals to come before the annual meeting (broker non-votes), will be considered present for the purposes of determining whether a quorum has been achieved at the annual meeting.

The two nominees for director receiving the greatest number of votes cast at the annual meeting in person or by proxy shall be elected. Consequently, any shares of common stock present in person or by proxy at the annual meeting but not voted for any reason have no impact in the election of directors, except to the extent that the failure to vote for an individual may result in another individual receiving a larger number of votes. All other matters to be considered at the annual meeting require the favorable vote of a majority of the shares entitled to vote at the meeting either in person or by proxy. Stockholders have no right to cumulative voting as to any matter, including the election of directors. If any proposal at the annual meeting must receive a specific percentage of favorable votes for approval, abstentions in respect of such proposal are treated as present and entitled to vote under the DGCL and, therefore, have the effect of a

vote against such proposal. Broker non-votes in respect of any proposal are not counted for purposes of determining whether such proposal has received the requisite approval under the DGCL.

Record Date and Share Ownership

Only stockholders of record of the common stock on our books at the close of business on March 24, 2008 will be entitled to vote at the annual meeting. On that date, we had 22,053,872 shares of common stock outstanding. A list of our stockholders will be open to the examination of any stockholders, for any purpose

germane to the meeting, at our headquarters for a period of ten (10) days prior to the meeting. Each share of common stock entitles the holder thereof to one vote on all matters submitted to stockholders.

PROPOSAL NO. 1 ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently consists of seven directors and is divided into three classes and the term of each class expires in a different year. At the annual meeting, two directors are to be elected as members of Class I to serve until the annual meeting in 2011 and until their successors are elected and qualified or until their earlier removal or resignation. The Board has nominated two nominees set forth below, each of whom has agreed to serve as a director if elected and each of whom has been nominated by the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee. Each nominee currently serves as a director of CVG. In the event any nominee is unable or unwilling to serve as a director at the time of the annual meeting (which events are not anticipated), the persons named on the enclosed proxy card may substitute another person as a nominee or may add or reduce the number of nominees to such extent as they shall deem advisable.

Subject to rights of holders of any series of preferred stock to fill newly created directorships or vacancies, any newly created directorships resulting from an increase in the authorized number of directors or any vacancies on the Board resulting from death, resignation, disqualification or removal for cause shall be filled by the Board provided that a quorum is then in office and present, or by a majority of the directors then in office, if less than a quorum is then in office, or by the sole remaining director.

Information regarding our director nominees and our directors not subject to reelection at the annual meeting is set forth below:

Name	Age	Position
Scott D. Rued(4)	51	Chairman and Director
Mervin Dunn	54	President, Chief Executive Officer and Director
Scott C. Arves(1)(2)(4)	51	Director
David R. Bovee(2)(3)(4)	58	Director
Robert C. Griffin(1)(2)(3)(4)	59	Director
S.A. Johnson(4)	67	Director
Richard A. Snell(1)(3)(4)	66	Director

- (1) Member of the Compensation Committee.
- (2) Member of the Audit Committee.
- (3) Member of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee.
- (4) Independent Director as defined in Rule 4200(a)(15) of the NASDAQ marketplace rules.

There are no family relationships between or among any of our directors or executive officers. Stock ownership information is shown under the heading Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and is based upon information furnished by the respective individuals.

Class I Directors Director Nominees

David R. Bovee has served as a Director since October 2004. Mr. Bovee served as Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Dura Automotive Systems, Inc. (Dura) from January 2001 to March 2005 and from November 1990 to May 1997. In October 2006, when Mr. Bovee was no longer affiliated with that company, Dura filed a voluntary petition for reorganization under the federal bankruptcy laws. From May 1997 until January 2001, Mr. Bovee served as Vice President of Business Development for Dura. Mr. Bovee also served as Assistant Secretary for Dura. Prior to joining Dura, Mr. Bovee served as Vice President at Wickes in its Automotive Group from 1987 to 1990.

Scott D. Rued has served as a Director since February 2001 and Chairman since April 2002. Since August 2003, Mr. Rued has served as a Managing Partner of Thayer Capital Partners (Thayer). Prior to joining

2

Thayer, Mr. Rued served as President and Chief Executive Officer of Hidden Creek Industries (Hidden Creek) from May 2000 to August 2003. From January 1994 through April 2000, Mr. Rued served as Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Hidden Creek.

Directors Continuing in Office

Class II Directors

Mervin Dunn has served as a Director since August 2004 and as our President and Chief Executive Officer since June 2002, and prior thereto served as the President of Trim Systems, commencing upon his joining us in October 1999. From 1998 to 1999, Mr. Dunn served as the President and Chief Executive Officer of Bliss Technologies, a heavy metal stamping company. From 1988 to 1998, Mr. Dunn served in a number of key leadership roles at Arvin Industries, including Vice President of Operating Systems (Arvin North America), Vice President of Quality, and President of Arvin Ride Control. From 1985 to 1988, Mr. Dunn held several key management positions in engineering and quality assurance at Johnson Controls Automotive Group, an automotive trim company, including Division Quality Manager. From 1980 to 1985, Mr. Dunn served in a number of management positions for engineering and quality departments of Hyster Corporation, a manufacturer of heavy lift trucks. Mr. Dunn also currently serves as a Director of Transdigm Group, Inc.

S.A. (Tony) Johnson has served as a Director since September 2000. Mr. Johnson is currently a Managing Partner of OG Partners, a private industrial management company, and has served in that capacity since 2004. Mr. Johnson served as the Chairman of Hidden Creek from May 2001 to May 2004 and from 1989 to May 2001 was its Chief Executive Officer and President. Prior to forming Hidden Creek, Mr. Johnson served from 1985 to 1989 as Chief Operating Officer of Pentair, Inc., a diversified industrial company. Mr. Johnson also currently serves as a Director of Cooper-Standard Automotive, Inc.

The terms of Messrs. Dunn and Johnson expire at the 2009 Annual Meeting.

Class III Directors

Scott C. Arves has served as a Director since July 2005. Since January 2007, Mr. Arves has served as President and Chief Executive Officer of Transport America, a truckload, intermodal and logistics provider. Prior to joining Transport America, Mr. Arves was President of Transportation for Schneider National, Inc., a provider of transportation, logistics and related services, from May 2000 to July 2006.

Robert C. Griffin has served as a Director since July 2005. Mr. Griffin has held numerous positions of responsibility in the financial sector, including Head of Investment Banking, Americas and Management Committee Member for Barclay s Capital from 2000 to 2002, and prior to that as the Global Head of Financial Sponsor Coverage for Bank of America Securities from 1998 to 2000 and Group Executive Vice President of Bank of America from 1997 to 1998. Mr. Griffin also currently serves as a Director of Builders FirstSource, Inc. and Sunair Services Corporation.

Richard A. Snell has served as a Director since August 2004. Mr. Snell has served as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Qualitor, Inc. since May 2005 and as an Operating Partner at Thayer Capital Partners since 2003. Prior to joining Thayer Capital Partners, Mr. Snell was a consultant from 2000 to 2003 and prior thereto, served as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Federal-Mogul Corporation, an automotive parts manufacturer, from 1996 to 2000. Prior to joining Federal-Mogul Corporation, Mr. Snell served as Chief Executive Officer at Tenneco Automotive, also an automotive parts manufacturer. Mr. Snell also currently serves as a Director of Schneider National, Inc.

The terms of Messrs. Arves, Griffin and Snell expire at the 2010 Annual Meeting.

Corporate Governance

Independence of Directors

The Board of Directors has determined that Messrs. Arves, Bovee, Griffin, Johnson, Rued and Snell are independent directors, as independence is defined in Rule 4200(a)(15) of the NASDAQ Stock Market LLC

3

Table of Contents

(NASDAQ) marketplace rules. The Board has not adopted categorical standards in making its determination of independence and instead relies on standards set forth in the NASDAQ marketplace rules. In making this determination, the Board considered all provisions of the definition in the standards set forth in the NASDAQ marketplace rules, and in Mr. Griffin s case, the fact that his daughter is employed as a recruiter for Deloitte Services LP, an affiliate of Deloitte & Touche LLP, our independent registered public accounting firm. Each member of the Audit Committee of the Board meets the heightened independence standards required for audit committee members under the NASDAQ marketplace rules and Rule 10A-3 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

Meetings of the Board and its Committees. The Board held eight meetings during fiscal 2007. The Board currently has three standing committees: the Audit Committee, the Compensation Committee and the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee. Each director is expected to attend each meeting of the Board and those committees on which he serves. In addition to meetings, the Board and its committees review and act upon matters through written consent procedures. Each of the directors attended 75% or more of the total number of meetings of the Board and those committees on which he served during the last fiscal year.

Audit Committee. Our Audit Committee is comprised of Messrs. Arves, Bovee (Chairman) and Griffin, of whom all are independent under the heightened independence standard required for audit committee members by the NASDAQ marketplace rules and Rule 10A-3 under the Exchange Act. Mr. Bovee has been named as our audit committee financial expert as such term is defined in Item 407(d)(5) of Regulation S-K. The Audit Committee is responsible for: (1) the appointment, compensation, retention and oversight of the work of the independent registered public accounting firm engaged for the purpose of preparing and issuing an audit report; (2) reviewing the independence of the independent registered public accounting firm and taking, or recommending that our Board of Directors take, appropriate action to oversee their independence; (3) approving, in advance, all audit and non-audit services to be performed by the independent registered public accounting firm; (4) overseeing our accounting and financial reporting processes and the audits of our financial statements; (5) establishing procedures for the receipt, retention and treatment of complaints received by us regarding accounting, internal control or auditing matters and the confidential, anonymous submission by our employees of concerns regarding questionable accounting or auditing matters; (6) engaging independent counsel and other advisors as the Audit Committee deems necessary; (7) determining compensation of the independent registered public accounting firm, compensation of advisors hired by the Audit Committee and ordinary administrative expenses; (8) reviewing and assessing the adequacy of our formal written charter on an annual basis; and (9) handling such other matters that are specifically delegated to the audit committee by our Board of Directors from time to time. Our Board of Directors adopted a written charter for our Audit Committee, which is posted on our web site at www.cvgrp.com. Deloitte & Touche LLP currently serves as our independent registered public accounting firm. The Audit Committee met eight times during fiscal 2007.

Compensation Committee. Our Compensation Committee is comprised of Messrs. Arves, Griffin and Snell (Chairman), of whom, all are independent, as independence is defined by Rule 4200(a)(15) of the NASDAQ marketplace rules. The Compensation Committee is responsible for: (1) determining, or recommending to our Board of Directors for determination, the compensation and benefits of all of our executive officers; (2) reviewing our compensation and benefit plans to ensure that they meet corporate objectives; (3) administering our stock plans and other incentive compensation plans; and (4) such other matters that are specifically delegated to the Compensation Committee by our Board of Directors from time to time. Our Board of Directors adopted a written charter for our Compensation Committee, which is posted on our web site at www.cvgrp.com. The Compensation Committee met four times during fiscal 2007.

Compensation Committee Interaction with Compensation Consultants. During 2007, the Compensation Committee engaged Pearl Meyer & Partners (PM&P) to assist with its review of the compensation programs for our executive officers and the preparation of various aspects of this proxy statement. Although the Compensation Committee retains PM&P, PM&P interacts with our executive officers when necessary and appropriate.

Compensation Committee Interaction With Management. Certain of our executive officers, including the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Vice President of Human Resources, may from time to

4

Table of Contents

time attend Compensation Committee meetings when executive compensation, company performance, team performance and individual performance are discussed and evaluated by Compensation Committee members. The executive officers are asked for their insights, ideas and recommendations on executive compensation matters during these meetings or at other times, and also provide updates on financial performance, mergers and acquisitions, industry status and other factors that may impact executive compensation.

The Board Chairman met with the Chief Executive Officer in early 2008 to review his performance for 2007 based on a performance appraisal completed in December 2007 by all of the Board members.

Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee. Our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee consists of Messrs. Bovee, Griffin (Chairman) and Snell, of whom, all are independent, as independence is defined by Rule 4200(a)(15) of the NASDAQ marketplace rules. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee is responsible for: (1) selecting, or recommending to our Board of Directors for selection, nominees for election to our Board of Directors; (2) making recommendations to our Board of Directors regarding the size and composition of the Board, committee structure and makeup and retirement procedures affecting Board members; (3) monitoring our performance in meeting our obligations of fairness in internal and external matters and our principles of corporate governance; and (4) such other matters that are specifically delegated to the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee by our Board of Directors from time to time. Our Board of Directors adopted a written charter for our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee, which is posted on our web site at www.cvgrp.com. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee met two times during fiscal 2007.

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee will consider as potential nominees individuals properly recommended by stockholders. Recommendations concerning individuals proposed for consideration by the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee should be addressed to Chad M. Utrup, Chief Financial Officer, Commercial Vehicle Group, Inc., 7800 Walton Parkway, New Albany, OH 43054. Each recommendation should include a personal biography of the suggested nominee, an indication of the background or experience that qualifies the person for consideration, and a statement that the person has agreed to serve if nominated and elected. Stockholders who themselves wish to effectively nominate a person for election to the Board of Directors, as contrasted with recommending a potential nominee to the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee for its consideration, are required to comply with the advance notice and other requirements set forth in our by-laws.

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee has used, to date, an informal process to identify potential candidates for nomination as directors. Candidates for nomination have been recommended by an executive officer or director, and considered by the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee and the Board of Directors. Generally, candidates have significant industry experience and have been known to one or more of the Board members. As noted above, the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee considers properly submitted stockholder recommendations for candidates for the Board. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee has established criteria that identify desirable experience for prospective Board members, including experience as a senior officer in a public or substantial private company, breadth of knowledge about issues affecting CVG or its industry and expertise in finance, logistics, manufacturing or marketing. Desired personal attributes for prospective Board members include integrity and sound ethical character, absence of legal or regulatory impediments, absence of conflicts of interest, demonstrated track record of achievement, ability to act in an oversight capacity, appreciation for the issues confronting a public company, adequate time to devote to the Board and its committees and willingness to assume broad/fiduciary responsibilities on behalf of all stockholders. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee does not evaluate potential nominees for director differently based on whether they are recommended to the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee by officers or directors of CVG or by a stockholder.

Stockholders and other interested parties may communicate with the Board of Directors, including the independent directors, by sending written communications to the directors c/o Chad M. Utrup, Chief Financial Officer,

Commercial Vehicle Group, Inc., 7800 Walton Parkway, New Albany, Ohio 43054. All such communications will be forwarded to the directors.

5

The Board of Directors has a policy that members of the Board of Directors are encouraged to attend the annual meetings of stockholders. All of the directors attended the 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

Company Code of Ethics. The Board has adopted a Code of Ethics that applies to the Company s directors, officers and employees. A copy of the Code of Ethics is posted on our web site at www.cvgrp.com. If we waive any provision of our Code of Ethics or change the Code of Ethics, we will disclose that fact on our website within four business days.

Insider Trading Policy. In connection with our initial public offering, we adopted a corporate policy regarding insider trading and Section 16 reporting that applies to our directors, executive officers and employees. This policy prohibits trading in our common stock under certain circumstances, including while in possession of material, non-public information about us.

Recommendation of the Board

THE BOARD RECOMMENDS A VOTE FOR THE ELECTION OF THE NOMINEES NAMED ABOVE.

Vote Required

The two persons receiving the highest number of FOR votes represented by shares present in person or represented by proxy at the annual meeting will be elected.

PROPOSAL NO. 2 RATIFICATION OF APPOINTMENT OF THE INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Audit Committee has reappointed Deloitte & Touche LLP as the independent registered public accounting firm to audit our financial statements for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2008. In making the decision to reappoint the independent registered public accounting firm, the Audit Committee has considered whether the provision of the non-audit services rendered by Deloitte & Touche LLP is incompatible with maintaining that firm s independence.

Stockholder ratification of the selection of Deloitte & Touche LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm is not required by our by-laws or other applicable legal requirement. However, the Board is submitting the selection of Deloitte & Touche LLP to the stockholders for ratification as a matter of good corporate practice. It is expected that a representative of Deloitte & Touche LLP will be present at the annual meeting, with the opportunity to make a statement if he so desires, and will be available to answer appropriate questions.

Approval of the proposal to ratify the appointment of Deloitte & Touche LLP requires the affirmative vote of a majority of the shares present and entitled to vote at the annual meeting.

Principal Accountant Fees and Services

For fiscal years 2007 and 2006, the following fees were billed to us for the indicated services:

	2007	2006
Audit Fees	\$ 1,503,000	
Audit-Related Fees	38,000	0 219,000
Tax Fees	766,000	927,000

All Other Fees

Total Independent Accountant s Fees

\$ 2,307,000

\$ 2,391,000

Audit Fees. Consist of fees billed for professional services rendered for the audit of our consolidated financial statements and review of the interim consolidated financial statements included in quarterly reports

6

Table of Contents

and services that are normally provided by Deloitte & Touche LLP in connection with statutory and regulatory filings or engagements.

Audit-Related Fees. Consist of fees billed for services that are reasonably related to the performance of the audit or review of our consolidated financial statements and are not reported under Audit Fees. These services include employee benefit plan audits and due diligence in connection with acquisitions, attest services that are not required by statute or regulation and accounting consultations on proposed transactions.

Tax Fees. Consist of fees billed for professional services for tax compliance, tax consultation and tax planning. These services include assistance regarding federal, state and international tax compliance, customs and duties, mergers and acquisitions and international tax planning.

All Other Fees. Consist of fees for products and services other than the services reported above.

Policy on Audit Committee Pre-Approval and Permissible Non-Audit Services of the Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Audit Committee s policy is to pre-approve all audit and permissible non-audit services provided by the independent registered public accounting firm. These services may include audit services, audit-related services, tax services and other services. Pre-approval is generally provided for up to one year and any pre-approval is detailed as to the particular service or category of services and is generally subject to a specific budget. The independent registered public accounting firm and management are required to periodically report to the Audit Committee regarding the extent of services provided by the independent registered public accounting firm in accordance with this pre-approval, and the fees for the services performed to date. The Audit Committee may also pre-approve particular services on a case-by-case basis.

During fiscal 2007, all services by Deloitte & Touche LLP were pre-approved by the Audit Committee in accordance with this policy.

Recommendation of the Board

THE BOARD RECOMMENDS A VOTE <u>FOR</u> THE RATIFICATION OF DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP AS THE COMPANY S INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2008.

Vote Requirement

Ratification of the appointment of Deloitte & Touche LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm for fiscal 2008 requires the affirmative vote of a majority of the shares present in person or represented by proxy at the annual meeting.

7

SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

Except as otherwise noted, the following table sets forth certain information with respect to the beneficial ownership of our common stock as of March 24, 2008 by: (1) each of the named executive officers in the Summary Compensation Table; (2) each of our directors and director nominees; (3) all directors and executive officers as a group; and (4) each person or entity known to us to be the beneficial owner of more than five percent of our outstanding shares of common stock. All information with respect to beneficial ownership has been furnished to us by the respective director, director nominee, executive officer or five percent beneficial owner, as the case may be. Unless otherwise indicated, each person or entity named below has sole voting and investment power with respect to the number of shares set forth opposite his or its name.

The following table lists the number of shares and percentage of shares beneficially owned based on 22,053,872 shares of common stock outstanding as of March 24, 2008, and a total of 581,351 common stock options currently exercisable or exercisable by our directors and executive officers as a group within 60 days of March 24, 2008. Beneficial ownership of the common stock listed in the table has been determined in accordance with the applicable rules and regulations promulgated under the Exchange Act. Shares of common stock subject to options currently exercisable or exercisable within 60 days of March 24, 2008 are deemed outstanding and beneficially owned by the person holding such options for the purpose of computing the number of shares and percentage beneficially owned by such person, but are not deemed outstanding for purposes of computing the percentage beneficially owned by any other person.

	Shares Beneficially Owned	
Name of Beneficial Owner	Number	Percentage
5% Stockholders:		
The Guardian Life Insurance Company of America(1)	2,621,431	11.9%
Artisan Partners Limited Partnership(2)	2,082,600	9.4%
Dimensional Fund Advisors Inc.(3)	1,437,177	6.5%
Goldman Sachs Asset Management(4)	1,301,478	5.9%
Stadium Capital Management, LLC(5)	1,281,129	5.8%
Unicredito Italiana S.p.A.(6)	1,251,500	5.7%
AXA Financial, Inc.(7)	1,216,875	5.5%
Wellington Management Company, LLP(8)	1,135,000	5.1%
Directors and Named Executive Officers:		
Mervin Dunn(9)	398,383	1.8%
Chad M. Utrup(10)	152,182	*
Scott D. Rued(11)	131,337	*
Gerald L. Armstrong(12)	120,006	*
James F. Williams(13)	106,915	*
S.A. Johnson(14)	40,892	*
W. Gordon Boyd(15)	36,316	*
Kevin R.L. Frailey(16)	31,000	*
Richard A. Snell(17)	17,500	*
Robert C. Griffin(18)	14,000	*
David R. Bovee(19)	12,900	*
Scott C. Arves(20)	12,500	*
All directors and executive officers as a group (12 persons)	1,073,931	4.9%

- * Denotes less than one percent.
- (1) Information reported is based on a Schedule 13G/A as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 9, 2008. According to the Schedule 13G/A, The Guardian Life Insurance Company of America is an insurance company and the parent of Guardian Investor Services LLC and RS Investment Management Co. LLC. According to the Schedule 13G/A, Guardian Investor Services LLC is a registered investment adviser, a registered broker-dealer and the parent company of RS Investment Management Co. LLC. RS Investment Management Co. LLC is a registered investment adviser whose clients have the

8

Table of Contents

right to receive or the power to direct the receipt of dividends from, or the proceeds from the sale of, the stock. No individual client sholdings of the common stock, except for RS Partners Fund, are more than five percent of the outstanding common stock. The address for RS Investment Management Co. LLC is 388 Market Street, Suite 1700, San Francisco, CA 94111.

- (2) Information reported is based on a Schedule 13G/A as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 13, 2008. According to the Schedule 13G/A, Artisan Partners Limited Partnership is a registered investment adviser. The shares reported have been acquired on behalf of discretionary clients of Artisan Partners. Persons other than Artisan Partners are entitled to receive all dividends from, and proceeds from the sale of, those shares. According to the Schedule 13G/A, Artisan Investment Corporation is the general partner of Artisan Partners and ZFIC, Inc. is the sole stockholder of Artisan Investment Corporation and Mr. Ziegler and Ms. Ziegler are the principal stockholders of ZFIC, Inc. The address for Artisan Partners is 875 East Wisconsin Avenue, Suite 800, Milwaukee, WI 53202.
- (3) Information reported is based on a Schedule 13G as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 6, 2008. According to the Schedule 13G, Dimensional Fund Advisors LP (formerly, Dimensional Fund Advisors Inc.) (Dimensional), an investment advisor registered under Section 203 of the Investment Advisors Act of 1940, furnishes investment advice to four investment companies registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940, and serves as investment manager to certain other commingled group trusts and separate accounts. These investment comp